Public Document Pack

ey
o
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Extraordinary Council Meeting

Council Offices
White Cliffs Business Park
Dover

Wednesday, 18 October 2017

Summons and Agenda

Nadeem Aziz
Chief Executive






pstiy
@
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

To the Members of the Council,

Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park

Dover
Kent CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199

Fax: (01304) 872452

DX: 6312

Minicom:  (01304) 820115

Website: www.dover.gov.uk

e-mail: democraticservices
@dover.gov.uk

10 October 2017

You are hereby summoned to attend an Extraordinary meeting of the COUNCIL to be held
in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Wednesday 18 October 2017 at 6.30 pm or
upon the rising of the Council meeting, whichever is the later, for the transaction of the

business set out in the Agenda.

hief Executive

Members of the Council:

S S Chandler (Chairman) N Dixon S C Manion
D Hannent (Vice-Chairman) M R Eddy K Mills

J S Back A Friend K E Morris

S F Bannister R J Frost D P Murphy
T J Bartlett B Gardner A M Napier
P M Beresford B J Glayzer M J Ovenden
T A Bond P J Hawkins A S Pollitt

P M Brivio P G Heath G Rapley

B W Butcher J M Heron N A G Richards
P | Carter M J Holloway M Rose

N J Collor S J Jones D A Sargent
M D Conolly L A Keen F J W Scales
M | Cosin N S Kenton P Walker

G Cowan P S Le Chevalier P M Wallace
D G Cronk S M Le Chevalier

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Page 5)




To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be
transacted on the agenda.

NOMINATIONS FOR HONORARY ALDERMAN AWARD (Pages 6 - 15)

To consider the attached report of the Director of Governance.

Access to Meetings and Information

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its
Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them except
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on
the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the Council Chamber
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from
our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes will be published on our website as soon as
practicably possible after each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.

If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Rebecca Brough,
Democratic Services Manager, telephone: (01304) 872304 or email:
rebecca.brough@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.




Agenda Item No 2
Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must
disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance
that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any
matter in which they have declared a DPI| and must not participate in any discussion of, or
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to
do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a
DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the
commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and
must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are
permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving
evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the
same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote
taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's

procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for
transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter
under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code:

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside
bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person
involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would
affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her
financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a
Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member,
relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in

some cases a DPI.



Agenda Item No 3

Subject: NOMINATIONS FOR HONORARY ALDERMAN AWARD
Meeting and Date: GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE - 9 OCTOBER 2017
COUNCIL — 18 OCTOBER 2017
Report of: DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE

Classification: UNRESTRICTED

Purpose of the report:

To consider nominations received for the award of the courtesy title
of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman in accordance with the
provisions of Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Recommendation:

That the Council decide whether to confer the title of Honorary
Alderman to one or more of the nominees in recognition of their
‘eminent service’ to Dover District Council.

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Summary

The Council approved a Scheme of Enrolment for Honorary Aldermen and
Alderwomen at its meeting held on 25 January 2017, which incorporated the
provisions of Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972. This report sets out the
first set of nominations for Honorary Aldermen.

Introduction and Background

Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972 permits a local authority to confer the
title of Honorary Alderman (or Alderwoman) upon persons who have, in the opinion
of the Council, “rendered eminent services to the council as past members of that
council, but who are not then members of the council”.

The Scheme of Enrolment set out in Appendix 1 of this report sets out the process for
awarding the courtesy title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman and the rights and
privileges it confers.

Nomination Criteria

To be considered for conferment of the title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman,
the nominee must have rendered:

(a) A total of 20 years’ service as a Member of Dover District Council which is
calculated on a cumulative basis. In exceptional circumstances less than 20
years’ service may be considered; and

(b) ‘Eminent services’ to the council as past members of that council.

It is for the Council to determine who in its judgement has rendered ‘eminent
services’. The legislation does not define the term in any further detail and it is for
members to determine what may qualify as ‘eminent service’.

Nominations

Councillor P Walker, seconded by Councillor K E Morris, has proposed that the
following former district councillors be considered for the award of the title of
Honorary Alderman:

Nominated Honorary Alderman: Paul Watkins



3.2

3.3

4.1
4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

Mr Watkins served as a member of Dover District Council for Lower Walmer Ward
(1983 — 1995) and St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ward (1999 — 2017). In total he was a
district councillor for 30 years of non-continuous service. He was Chairman of the
Council three times (1989 — 1992) and Leader of the Council under the Executive
Model (2003 — 2017).

Nominated Honorary Alderman: George (‘Jim’) Hood

Mr Hood served as a member of Dover District Council for Town and Pier Ward from
1976 — 2015. In total he was a district councillor for 39 years of continuous service
and still remains the Council’s longest serving member. He was the Cabinet Member
for Transport, Opportunity and Access from 2000-02, Cabinet Member for
Opportunity from 2002-03 and a member of the Shadow Cabinet from 2003-4 and
2007 — 2011.

Identification of Options

The two nominations that have been received meet the criteria as set out in the
Scheme of Enrolment (a copy of this is attached in Appendix 1). A copy of the
nomination papers can be found in Appendix 2 (Paul Watkins) and Appendix 3 (Jim
Hood).

It is for the Council to determine whether the nominees should be conferred the title
of Honorary Alderman. This can only be conferred by a “resolution of not less than
two-thirds of the members voting thereon at a meeting of the [full] council specifically
convened for the purpose”.

In the event that the decision is taken to confer the title of Honorary Alderman to one
or more of the nominees, the award of Honorary Alderman itself will be made at a
Council meeting to be held at a future date and not at the meeting at which the
decision is taken to confer the award.

Evaluation of Options
Option 1: To confer the title of Honorary Alderman on one or more of the nominees.

Option 2: To not confer the title of Honorary Alderman on one or more of the
nominees.

It is worth noting that the legislation makes provision that any former Member who is
conferred the status of Honorary Alderman (or Alderwoman) and who is
subsequently re-elected to the Council shall have their status as Alderman (or
Alderwoman) placed in abeyance for the time that they hold office and may not be
referred to as Alderman (or Alderwoman) or exercise any of the associated
privileges.

Resource Implications

Section 249(4A) of the Local Government Act 1972 permits a principal council, in this
case Dover District Council, to ‘spend such reasonable sum as they think fit for the
purpose of presenting an address, or a casket containing an address, to a person on
whom they have conferred the title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman’.

As it is for Members to determine who in their opinion is suitable to be have the title
of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman it is difficult to quantify the number of
awards to be given in any given year. However, it is not expected that the cost will be
significant.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Scheme of Enrolment



Appendix 2 — Nomination for Paul Watkins
Appendix 3 — Nomination for Jim Hood

Appendix 4 — Recommendation of the General Purposes Committee

7. Background Papers
None

Contact Officer: Rebecca Brough, Democratic Services Manager, 01304 872304



—— SCHEME OF ENROLMENT FOR HONORARY ALDERMEN AND
DOVER ALDERWOMEN OF DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Qualifications Required for Enrolment

1.1 A former elected member of Dover District Council shall be eligible for consideration to
be nominated to the position of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman in accordance with
the provisions of Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972 if he or she has
rendered:

(i) Atotal of 20 years’ service as a Member of Dover District Council which is calculated
on a cumulative basis. In exceptional circumstances less than 20 years’ service may
be considered; and

(i) ‘Eminent services’ to the council as past members of that council.

1.2 This will generally be in the form of, but not limited to, service as the Chairman of the
Council, Leader of the Council, Leader of a Political Group, Chairman of a major Council
Committee or by holding one or more senior positions on the council.

Method of Enrolment

2.1 Applications for nomination as an Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman shall be made by
2 serving Members of the Council and submitted in writing to the Director of Governance
on the approved form. The Director of Governance will then submit a report

2.2 Prior to the submission of any application for nomination the person nominated shall be
asked by the Members nominating him or her if he or she is willing to accept nomination
for enrolment as an Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman and he or she shall have
indicated a willingness to accept the nomination.

2.3 The Director of Governance will screen the nominations for eligibility (as per the
qualification provisions of this scheme) and submit a report with all qualifying
nominations to the General Purposes Committee for consideration and, if it so decides,
onwards recommendation to a meeting of the full Council.

2.4 Election to the position of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman shall be by a resolution of
the Council by not less than two-thirds of the Members voting thereon at a meeting of
the Council specially convened for that purpose with notice of the object.

2.5 Following the election of a person to the position of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman,
the Director of Governance will arrange:

()  For the name of the person to be admitted to the Roll of Honorary Aldermen and
Alderwomen, which shall be established for such purpose.



(ii)

For the title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman to be conferred on the persons
nominated at a meeting of the Council together with the presentation of a scroll.

Rights and Privileges

3.1 Subject to 3.2, an Honorary Alderman shall be entitled to the following rights and
privileges:

3.2

3.3

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

To enjoy the courtesy title of “Honorary Alderman” or “Honorary Alderwoman” and
to be addressed as such.

To attend as an observer at meetings of the Council or any other meetings to
which the press and public are admitted and to have a seat reserved for this
purpose.

To receive invitations to all civic events to which Members of the Council are
invited.

To walk in any civic processions in a position immediately senior to serving
Members.

To receive a copy of the Council’'s Year Book on request.

On death, to have the Civic flag flown at the Council Offices, Whitfield at half-
mast.

The Council may decide to alter, amend, supplement or withdraw the rights and
privileges set out in 3.1 above either generally or, in the case of an individual Honorary
Alderman or Alderwoman.

In the event of an Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman resuming membership of the
Council, he or she shall cease to be entitled to be addressed as Honorary Alderman or
Honorary Alderwoman or to attend or take part in any civic ceremonies of the Council as
an Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman.

10



ey DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL
- | Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman Nomination Form
DOVER v
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Please provide the following details about the former councillor that you wish to nominate for
Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman.

Name of Nominee: Paul A Watkins

" Address of Nc;mineé:

Telephone Number of Nominee: (if
known)
Email Address of Nominee: (if known)

Does the nominee agree for their name to YES NO
be put forward for consideration? \/

The Scheme of Enrolment sets out the eligibility criteria and you should ensure that you have read it
before nominating a former member of the Council for consideration.

Name of Nominating Councillor Peter Walker

Signature of Nominating Councillor g
Date 27% September 2017

Name of Seconding Councillor Keith Morris

Signature of Seconding Councillor g

Date 27 September 2017

11



Please detail what ‘eminent service’ the nominee has rendered to the Dover District. Please give
specific details and you may continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

Just to serve 30 years as a Councillor in the Dover District is sufficient evidence of the devotion to
serving the public but to have also completed three years as Chairman and fourteen years as Leader
of the Councit indicates acceptance of his qualities as being of high standard. He has maintained his
stance on many issues within the Council chamber and often with stiff opposition but he has always,
and with great discretion, been ready with kindness and support for all within the Council.

Paul is a man of robust opinion who tackles every issue with equal care and attention. He is happy to
listen to all opinions before making a decision, and every decision he made was based upon his desire
to do his best for everyone in the District.

Within Kent but outside of this District he has represented us with aplomb and been received with
great respect by those, for example, within SEEDA, KCC, HM Government or other Council Leaders.

He has given absolute and exceptional service and as such is deserving of being made Honorary
Alderman.

12



m DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

“ Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman Nomination Form
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Please provide the following details about the former councillor that you wish to nominate for
Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman.

Name of Nominee: George } (Jim) Hood

Address of Nominee: 7

Telephone Number of Nominee: (if | | NGB

known) R |
Email Address of Nominee: (if known)

Does the nominee agree for their name to
be put forward for consideration? YES x NO

The Scheme of Enrolment sets out the eligibility criteria and you should ensure that you have read it
before nominating a former member of the Council for consideration.

Name of Nominating Councillor Peter Walker
Signature of Nominating Councillor ﬁ
Date 27t September 20;7
Name of Seconding Councillor Keith Morris
Signature of Seconding Councillor _
) W /4

13



Please detail what ‘eminent service’ the nominee has rendered to the Dover District. Please give
specific details and you may continue on a separate sheet if necessary.

Jim Hood is best seen as a shining example of honesty and integrity. In his 39 years as an elected
Councillor he has served on at least 34 different committees, working parties, cabinets or shadow
cabinets etc. Some of those positions have been as Chair, indeed his last one was as Chair of Scrutiny
( Community & Regeneration ).

Any Councillor that has seen Jim in action, listened to him in debate, had a private ciywersation, raised
a problem with him , or just plain argued with him has witnessed a great talent at using vast experuaqf:p
to get over his point. If he was ever riled it rarely showed, if he did not agree he did not keep qurer m:t
did make his point effectively, if he was ever wrong he was quick to apologise. Jim has a humble
nature, always offered support, especially to new Councillors, gave respect where respect was due
and never ever sought platitudes for himself.

If one had to seek out a model for a District Councillor it would be difficult to consider anyone other
than Jim. His 39 years as a District Councillor have been an example to us all, whether we achieve the
higher echelons or not and for that alone he is deserving of being made Honorary Alderman.

14



Appendix 4

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE — 9 OCTOBER 2017

NOMINATION FOR HONORARY ALDERMAN AWARD (Minute No. 5)

“That it be recommended to Council that the Mr G J Hood and Mr P A Watkins be conferred the
status of Honorary Alderman.”

15



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Nominations for Honorary Alderman Award
	Appendix 1 - SCHEME OF ENROLMENT FOR HONORARY ALDERMEN AND ALDERWOMEN OF DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL
	Appendix 2 - Nomination Form for P A Watkins
	Appendix 3 - Nomination Form for G J Hood
	Appendix 4 - Recommendation of the General Purposes Committee




